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Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 for Rathbone Investment
Management Limited (the Company)

Principal activity
The principal activity of Rathbone Investment Management Limuted during the year was the provision of discretionary investment
management services for private clients, charities and trusts  This has remamed unchanged from prior years

Business review
This Business review has been prepared 1n hne with guidance provided by the Accounting Standards Board to provide a balanced
pieture of the business and 1ts prospects, without prejudicing the confidential nature of commercially sensitive mformation

This Business review contains certain forward-looking statements which are made by the directors in good faith and are based on the

information available to them at the time of their approval of this review Statements contained within the business review should be '
treated with some caution due to the inherent uncertainties, including economue, regulatory and busingss nisk factors, underlying any
such forward-looking statements The Business review has been prepared by Rathbone Investment Management Limited to provide
information to 1ts shareholder, Rathbone Brothers Ple and should not be relied upon by any other party or for any other purpose

Table 1 Funds under management

|
|
Year to date changes in the business’ key performance indicators are shown 1n Table 1 below ‘

2011 2010
Underlying rate of net organic growth 1n §5% 32% Notes to Table 1
funds under management'
Underlying rate of total net growth in 73% 10 3% 1 See Table 2
funds under management' 2 Net operating inrcome (see Table 3) divided by average
Funds under management at 31 £14 25bn £14 12bn funds under management on the quarterly bill:ng dates
December!
Average net operating basis pomt return” 88bps S0bps

Business environment

Rathbone Investment Management continues to principally provide discretionary investment management services to private clients,
charities and trusts Despite the difficult economic and investment conditions during 2011 the business has continued to attract funds
throughout the year, both organically and from acquired growth Organic inflows of funds under management represent the value of
new funds mtroduced by new or existing clients  Acquired growth represents new funds either from acquusitions or introduced by
investment managers who have joined us recently

Table 2 Movement in funds under management

2011 2010
£bn £bn .
Avat T Januay T2 76 Notes to Table 2
1

Inflows 187 ? Sé 1 Value at the date of transfer n/out
- DTEaﬂlCd 1 6; 060 2 Impact of market movements and relative performance
o acqmre] 02 3 Orgamc mflows less outflows
Outflows , {0 84) (081) 4 Net organic business as a % of opening funds under
Market adjustment (0 90) 121 management
As at 31 December 14 25 1412 5 Net organic and acquired business as a % of opening funds
Net organic new business’ 077 061 under management
Underlying rate of net orgame growth’ 5 5% 52%
Underlying rate of total net growth’ 73% 10 3%

Gross organic mflows of £1 87 billion 1n 2011 represent 13 2% of funds under management at the start of the year {2010 17 3%) Net
organic growth {stated after gross outflows) remaned stable at 5 5% of opening funds under management (2010 5 2%) Outflows of
funds principally arise as chients withdraw capital from portfolios to meet other financial requirements or close their account and these
have continued at rates normally expected
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Directors’ report continued )

Organic growth 1s largely due to referrals from existing clients, but there 15 an increasing amount of business referred to us from
professional intermedianes

=  Chanty funds under management increased by 3 1% to £1 68 bilhion at 31 December 2011 from £1 63 billion at 31
December 2010,

s Panel relatienship funds under management mcreased by 5 4% to £1 37 tullion at 31 December 2011 from £1 30 hallion at
31 December 2010, and

s  SIPP funds under management increased by 2 0% to £343 nulhion at 31 December 2011 from £334 mullion at 31 December
2010

Acquired funds under management totalled £260 milhion 1n 2011 and are principalty from clients introduced by fund managers who
have jomed us recently Acqured growth in 2010 of £600 muillion included £421 mullion of funds resulting from the transaction with
Lloyds Banking Group n 2009

Total net organic and acquered growth has added £1 0 bilhon of funds under management in 2011 representing a growth rate of 7 3%
(2010 10 2%) Total net inflows throughout the year have grown funds under management to £14 25 buliton at 31 December 2011, 0 9%
higher than at the start of the year The FTSE 100 Index and the FTSE APCIMS Balanced Index dropped by 5 6% and 2 8%
respectively over the same period

The financial performance of the business 1s driven to a large extent by the value of funds under management and the net growth in
new funds Income 1s derived from

*  nvestment management or advisory fees are charged on a sliding scale en the value of clients’ funds under management at
the end of each quarter,

e commussions are levied on transactions undertaken on behalf of clients, and
interest margin 1s carned on the value of cash held in client portfolios

Financial performance

Table 3 Financial performance

2011 2010
£m £m
Fee mcome' 83 64 8
Commuission 352 347
Interest and other mcome® 16.6 173 ¢
Net operating income 1301 116 8 Notes to Table 3
Underlying operating expenses - (89 0) ®47) 1 Fee and commussion wncome 1s stated net after deducting
Underlying profit before tax a1l 321 fees and commussion expenses paid to mtroducers
Levies for Financial Services - G4 2 Interest and other income 1s presented net of interest
Compensation Scheme? expense paid on client accounts
1 Amortisation of client relationships 50 “7n 3 Exceptional levies

Profit before tax 36.1 240" 4 Underlying prefit before tax divided by net operating
Underlying operating % margin® 31.6% 275% income

The principal driver of 1ncreased profit before tax and the improved underlying operating margin was higher fec income Net fee
income increased by 20 8% to £78 3 mulhion in the year ended 31 December 2011 from £64 8 million due to continuing growth n
funds under management and higher charges which were introduced at the end of the first quarter of 2011 The largest element of these
revisions was the introduction of an additional individual account fee which better reflect the costs associated with maintaining chent
accounts Having reviewed the marketplace, it 1s believed that charging structures continue to represent good value and there has been
no significant loss of chents as a consequence of the charging review
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Directors’ report continued

Table 4 Average funds under management

2011 2010

£bn £bn
Valuation dates for billing .
-5 Apnl 1452 12 57
- 30 June 1478 1198
- 30 September 1355 1313
- 31 December 14 25 14 12
- Average 1427 1265
- Average FTSE 100 ievel 5663 5528

Average funds under management on our principal billing dates in 2011 were £14 27 billion, up 10 2% from 2010, as shown 1n table 4
The average FTSE 100 Index (measured on the same dates) was 5663 1n 2011 compared with an average of 5528 1 2010, an tnereasc of
2 4% whilst the FTSE APCIMS Balanced Index increased 2 6%, calculated on a comparable basis

Table 5 Revenue margins

2011 2010
basis pts basis pts Notes to Table §
Basis pomt return from
Fee income 53 50 1 Net operating income (see Table 3} divided by the average
Commission 24 27 funds under management on the quarterly billing dates (see
Interest and other income 11 13 Table 4)
Total basis point return’ 88 90

Total 2011 revenue margins reduced (o 88 basis points 1n 2011 from 30 basis points 1n 201¢ Overall fee and commission margins were
unchanged at 77 basis points The business expects the fee basis point return to marginally increase next year as the 2011 fee increases
only took effect from the end of the first quarter The basis point return on commussion 15 largely dependent on investment transactions In
the absence of sigmificant changes in transaction levels the overall basis point return on fees and commussions 1s likely to remain constant
In 2011 basis point return on interest and other income reduced by 2 points as the 2010 margins included a dividend of £2 4m from
Rathbone [nvestment Management International Limited which was not repeated in 2011 Average hquidity in 2011 of £904 mullion was
down 4 4% compared to 2010 All of the above factors are reflected in the change to total revenue margin shown i Table 5 ¢

Table 6 Operating expenses

2011 2010
£m £m

[otal staff costs 50 7 48 8
QOther operating expenses 38 4 359 Notes to Table 6
Underlying operating expenses 891 847
Exceptional Financial Services - 33 1 Underlying operating expenses divided by net operating
Compensation Levy ncome
Amortisation of client relationships 50 47
Operating cxpenses 911 927
Underlying operating % margin’ T0 9% 72 5%

Total operating expenses for 2011 were £54 1 mullion, compared to £92 7 mullion 1n 2010 an increase of 1 5% Total staif costs
mncreased by 3 9% to £5¢ 7 mullron, average full-time equivatent headcount of investment managers and teams involved in client-
facing activities increased to 277 1in 2011 compared to 258 1n 2010

Other operating expenses of £38 4 miilion include property, deprecianon settlement, 1T, finance and other central support services
costs The year-on-year increase of £2 5 million (6 9%) largely reflects general inflation and the higher operational costs associated
with general growth

Chent relationship intangible assets are created n the course of acquinng funds under management As the amortisation charge
associated with these assets represent a signuficant non-cash item, this has been excluded from underlying profit to separately highlight
what are largely cash-based earnings

Amortisation charges 1n respect of client relationship intangibles have increased from £4 7 mullion to £5 0 milhion due to additional
acquired growth
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Directors’ report continued

Operations and property

The informaton technology department has continued to provide a robust operatiens infrastructure There have been a large number of
developments in our investment and our support systems to drive the business forward and improve efficiency This ensures that we
can provide “whole of market” cheice for investment managers and clients Some of the more significant examples in 2011 include

improving our on-line reporting funcuonality for clients and their advisors,
outsourcing our data centre,

implementing a new Treasury system, and

preparing for moving our London offices

In 2012 we plan to further invest in our core mnvestment management systems and in February 2012 the Group 1s relocating 11s two
London office to No 1 Curzon Street

Taxation
The effective tax rate for the year 1527 4% (2010 25 8%), calculated as the total tax charge of £9 9 mullion (2010 £6 2million)
divided by the profit before income tax of £36 1 mullion (2010 £24 0 milhon)

A full reconciliation of income tax expense 15 included in note 8 to the accounts

Dwidend
Dividends of £12,000,000 were paid to sharcholders durmg 2011 (2010 £31,840 000) The Board has not recommended a final
dividend to be paid  This results n a total payment of 800 Op per share (2010 2122 7p) for the year

Capital management
The company has accounting capital, which is the total of share capital share premium and retained carnings, as at
31 December 2011 of £111,887,000 (2010 £97,773,000}

The company 1s also required to maintain regulatory capital in accordance with the rules 1ssued by our regulator, the Financial Services
Authority The regulatory capital requirement 1s calculated on a darly basis The businesses objectives when managing capital are

*  to comply with uts regulatory requirements,

+ o mantain a strong capital base to support the development of the business,

s o safeguard the businesses ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for its
shareholder and benefits for other stakuholders

The company remains well capitalised and continues to not rely on the wholesale market to fund 1its operations On a Basel I1i basis,
the tier 1 ratio, calculated as shareholders equity as a proportion of total risk weighted assets was 16 57% at 31 December 2011 (2010
12 60%)

Treasury and financing
As a bank, the company holds the Group’s surplus liquidity on its balance sheet together with any client deposits which represent the
cash element wathin chent portfolios

The Treasury department, reporting through the Banking Commutiee to the Board, operates in accordance with procedures set out in a
treasury manual that 1s approved by the board The Treasury department monitors exposure to market, credit and hquidity risk, as set
out in note 25 of the financial statements

The Treasury department mvests 1n a range of hquid instruments 1ssued by a relatively wide number of counterparties  Counterparties
must be rated A or higher by Fitch and are regularly reviewed to ensure ratings remain appropriate The business continues to be a net
provider of hquidity to the banking markets and does not rely on wholesale funding to finance 1ts operations and does not anucipate
that this will change

Ouistanding loans to clients totalled £45 8 mullion at the end of 2011 (£39 0 mullion at the end 0 2010) The business has very
conservative lending policies and loans are generally fully secured aganst the mmvestrent portfolio that we manage

4 Rathhone Investment Managoment Limited
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Directors’ report continued

Liquidity and cash flow

As fee income 15 largely collected direct from client portfolios and expenses by and large are predictable, the business operates with a
modest amount of working capital Larger cash flows are principally generated from settlement activities and mvesiment management
decisions about the amount of cash to be held in chent portfolios Liquidity 1s monitored on a daily basis As a bank the company 1s
subject to the FSA s Individual Liquidity Adequacy Assessment regime

Excluding operational activity, the most significant non-operating cash flows during the year were as follows

e outflows relating to the payment of dividends of £12 0 mullien (2010 £31 8 mullion),

* outflows relating to intangible asset additions of £1 3m (2010 £27 7 milhion mainly n respect of acquired chent
relationsheps), and

+ outflows relating to captial expenditure of £6 9 million on property, plant and equipment (2010 £2 7 millton)

Risks and uncertainties
This year presented a number of factors which particularly impacted the risk profile of the business and these are outhned below

Negative impact of future regulation

Durning the year there were a number of regulatory pronouncements on banking capital, hquidity, the Retail Disinbution Review, the
consumer credit act and foreign account tax comphance Responding in time to this regulation and refining system requirements and
processes to ensure compliance takes considerable effort

The risk of unexpected additional levies being charged by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme has increased significantly in
recent years In January 2011, the business received an invoice for £3 2 million 1n relation 1o an mtenm levy from the FSCS that was
1n relation to the failure of Keydata Investment Services Limited (Keydata) and other ntermedianies These charges were presented as
an exceptional levy n the financial statements 1n 2010 No such exceptional levies have been accrued 1n 2011 as no further large and
unexpected levies have been made by the FSCS  In December 2011 the P'SCS announced a ikely additional levy of £40 mllion n
relation to further development of the failure of Keydata and Willis & Co The businesses share of this £40 million levy 1s estimated at
£34,000 and has been fully provided for The FSCS has also announced that it 1s considering whether 1t will be able to pay claims to
investors who have incurred losses on investments with CF Arch Cru Funds and MF Global Investors The FSCS has not yet
quantified the likely cost of compensation to affected investors  As it 1s not possible to quantify the impact of these fatlures with any
accuracy no provision has been made for these potential additional levies

The TSCS are also in the process of re-negotiating the terms of the £18 billion of loans that were taken out 1n 2008/09 to cover the
costs of the depositor failures Any increase in the mterest cost of these loans will impact the FSCS banking levy for 2012/13 onward
As a1 31 December 2011 the business had provided £461,000 for 1ts estimated share of this levy and s based on the guideline interest
rate that has been provided to the industry

Competition risk

In the 2010 accounts the Retail Distribution Review which comes into effect on the 1% January 2013 was identified as a potential
significant competition nisk  Although its full effects remain uncertan, the business expects 1t to present addiional opportunitics and
improve our competitive position

Repurational risk
The company has a reputation as a high quahity provider of investment management services There 1s a nsk that sigmificant damage to
reputation could lead to loss of existing clients and failure to gain new clients which would lead to financial loss

Reputational risk could arise for a wide variety of reasons mncluding
+ poor performance or service, and
« regulatory censure leading to negative publicity

This risk 15 mingated by our continming emphasis on comphance with all relevant regulation and statutes, 1n particular the Training and
Competence regime of the Financial Services Authornity and preserving and building on our established culture of seeking the highest
possible professional and ethical standards

Operational risk

The Company actrvely manages nisk ansing from the nisk of losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events by implementing and communicating guidelines to staff and other third parties Management also
regularly monitor the performance of controls and adherence to these guirdelines

Key components of the control environment include modelling of operational nsk exposure and scenario testing, management review
of activities, documentation of policies and procedures, contingency planning and embedding systems and controls within key
processes
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Directors’ report continued

Technology risk
The continuing delivery of high quality services to clients 1s to a large extent dependent on a robust and flexible IT infrastructure
Failure of IT strategy or implementation would have an adverse impact on the business

IT infrastructure 1s given a high prionty  There are a number of business-led IT steering comnuttees in place but overall responsibility
for strategy rests with the Group IT Steering Commuttee, chaired by a main board director 1T projects are reviewed by the Group
committee on a monthly basis and formal documented procedures exist for approving IT changes or developments

The Company has duplicated 1ts core systems at two sites and they can be accessed from its disaster recovery sites

Acquisition risk
During 2011 the business completed the final element of the Lloyds Banking Group transaction that was agreed i 2009 There are no
matenal acquisiions currently underway

Loss of an investment management feam
Investment manager turnover has been very low historically and this has continued 1n 2011

Financial risks

Credit risk

There have been a number of high profile rating downgrades 1n the banking sector with particular concerns on sovereign risk within
the Eurc zone The Banking Committee retamed 1ts conservative treasury policy and n Light of the continuing uncertain outlook
increased 1ts holding 1n AAA rated counterparties to £150 million at 31 December 2011 from £37 million 31 December 2010

Liquidity risk
The business remains hughly cash generative with a strong hquidity profile Liquidity was managed within tolerances throughout the
year and achieved all of its regulatory requurements n respect of the TSA’s Individual Liquidity Adequacy Assessment regime

Market risk
The business has maintained 1ts conservative policy n respect of managing interest rate risk adhering to agreed tolerance limits
throughout the year Currency risks have remained mimimal

Going concern basis

The company remains well capitahised, 1t does not rely on the wholesale market to fund 1ts operations but has a subordinated loan of
£15m from its parent company Rathbone Brothers Plc {(note 21) Note 26 to the financial statements includes the Company s
objectives and policies for managing its capita Note 25 to the financial statements explains the Company’s financial risk management
objectives, details of its financiat instruments and its exposure to credit risk and hquidity nsk

In 2011, the Company continued to generate net organic growth in chient funds under management and this 1s expected to continue in
the future The directors behieve that the Company 1s well placed to manage 1ts business risks successfully despite the current uncertain
economic outlook

As the directors confirm they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue 1n operational
existence for the foreseeable future, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 1n preparing the annual financial
statements In forming their view, the directors have constdered the Company’s prospects for a penod exceeding 12 months
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Directors’ report continued

Directors
The directors serving at the year end, all of whom have served throughout the year (except where indicated), were as follows

M Nicholls (appomnted 11 May 2011) Lord Clifton AT Momms
A D Pomfret B Kenny J B Vernen
T J Bolton-Carter R P Lanyon M M Webb
J R Chillimgworth D Macaulay
I M Buckley R T Smeeton
P D G Chavasse R P Swockton

G M Powell retired from the Board on 11 May 2011 and M Nicholls was appointed to the Board on the same date

M M Webb, T ] Bolton-Carter, D Macaulay, Lord Chifion and J R Chillingworth resigned from the Board on 8 February 2012 On the
same date, O R P Corbett, C M Burton, C R R Avery, K A Matthews and D T D Harrel were appointed to the Board

None of the directors had any interest in the shares of the Company at any time during the year

Creditor payment policy
The Company does not follow a published code or standard on payment practice The Company’s policy 1s to fix terms of payment
with suppliers in accordance with their requirements and the Company’s financial procedures, and to ensure that suppliers and relevant

Company departments are aware of those terms Trade creditors at the balance sheet date represented 30 7 days of annual purchases
(2010 13 7 days)

Employees

The parent company operates share based payment incentive schemes and defined benefit pension schemes for the benefit of its
employees The associated charges to profit and loss that relate to employees that provide services to the Company are recharged to
the Company by 1ts parent and are disclosed within staff costs

Equality and diversity
Rathbones 1s an equal opportunities employer and 1t 1s our policy to ensure that all job applicants and employees are treated fairly and
on merit regardless of their race, gender, marital status, age, disability, religious belief or sexual orientation

It 1s our policy and practice to give full and fair consideration to applications for employment by disabled people [femployees
become disabled during their service, wherever practical, arrangements and adjustments are made to continue their employment and
traimning

Rewards and benefits
Employees are encouraged to identify and te become involved with the financial performance of the Group by initsatives such as the
Share Incentive Plan (“SIP”)

Employee invelvement
Communication with staff takes place through a vartery of means includmng internal email and an internal newsletter Employees have
easy access to policies, procedures, organisation charts, announcements and Company news through a web-based shared workspace

7 Rathbone Investment Management Limited
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Directors’ report and the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors' report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected to prepare
the financial statements in accordance with [FRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing these financial statements,
the directors are required to

e  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
s  make judgements and estumates that are reasonable and prudent,
e state whether they have been prepared m accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 15 inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the company's
transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integeity of the corporate and financial information included on the company's
website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation n other
jurisdictions

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confinm that, so far as they are each aware, there 15 no
relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware and each director has taken all the steps that he ought to
have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and 10 establish that the Company’s auditors are
aware of that information

Auditors
Pursuant to Scction 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors wiil be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG Audit Ple will therefore
continue m office

Approved by the Board on 20 February 2012 and signed on 1ts behalf

I

Richard Loader |
Company Secretary |
Port of Liverpool Building |
Pier Head |
Liverpool |
L3 INW |

|

|
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Rathbone Investment Management Limited

We have audited the financ:al statements of Rathbone Investment Management Limited for the period ended 31 December 2011 set
out on pages 10 to 49 The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n their preparation 1s appltcable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as adopted by the EU

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are requrred to state to them in
an audtor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work. for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed

Respective responsibihities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 1n the statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on page 8, the directors are responsible for the preparauon
of the financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an
optnion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply wath the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements s provided on the APB's website at
wwy Irc org uk/apb/scope/private ¢im

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinien the financial staterents

*  give atrue and fawr view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of us profit for the pertod then -
ended, =

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and

*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinson on other matter preseribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the directors' report for the financial period for which the financial statements are prepared 1s :

consistent with the financial statements =

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f, m our
opinion

+  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not .
visited by us, or

*  the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns or
s  certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made or

* we have not received all the information and explananons we requite for cur andit

-

R Faulkner (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Ple, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
London
El4 5GL

20 F'ebruary 2012
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1011 2010
Note £000 £'060
Interest and similar income 10,982 10,182
Interest expense and simular charges {1,665) (1 418)
Net interest income 4 9,317 8,764
Fee and commission income 117,684 102,352
Fee and commission expense (4,181) (2.844)
Net fee and commission income 113,503 99,508
Intra-group management charges 5,945 5.765
Dividends from subsicharies - 2,388
Other operating income 1,348 335
Operating income 130,113 116,760
Excepuional levies for the Financial Services Compensation Scheme 5 - (3,353)
Amortisation of client relationships 17 (4,969) (4,694)
Other operaling expenses (89,082) (84,676)
Opcratm_g_ eXpenses 5 (94,051) {92,723)
Profit before tax 36,062 24,037
Taxation 8 (9,948) (6172)
Profit after tax 26,114 17,865
Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the Company 26,114 17,865
Other comprehensive mcome for the period - -
Total comprehensive income for the period attrbutable to the equity
holders of the Company 26,114 17 865
The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 49 form an mtegral part of the financial statements
10 Rathboneg Investment Management Limited
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Share Share Retained Total
capital premum earmngs equity
Notc £'000 £000 £000 £7000
At | January 2010 1,500 11,710 . 98,538 111,748
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 17 865 17,865
Dividends paid 9 - - {31,840) (31 840
At 1 January 2011 1,500 11,710 84,563 97,773
Total comprehensive income for the peniod - - 26,114 26,114
Dividends paid 9 - - (12,000) (£2,000)
At 31 December 2011 1,500 11,710 98,677 111,887
The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 49 form an integral part of the financial statements
11 Rathbone Investment Management Limited
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Balance sheet
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010 2009
Restated (Note 2) Restated (Note 2)
Note £000 £'000 £7000
Assets
Cash 10 3 3 4
Secttlement balances 10,253 11,999 9,019
Loans and advances to banks H 52,183 31,282 78,012
Loans and advances to customers 12 45,825 39,009 26,529
Investment secunties
- available for sale 13 63,000 37,000 84,000
- held to maturity 13 843,983 751,085 694,000
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 14 31,404 29,446 24,348
Property, plant and equipment 15 10,652 6.138 5,672
Deferred tax assct 16 779 57 .
Intangible asscts 17 59,280 58 038 48 427
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 18 2,510 2,510 3,592
Total assets 1,119,872 966,567 976,603
Liabihities
Deposits by banks , 19 513 215 1,152
Settlement balances 19,296 19,860 14,828
Due to customers 20 951,869 812,066 819,158
Accruals deferred income, provisions and other liabihities 22 17,304 17,176 25,589
Deferred tax hiability - - 2,123
Current tax liabilities 4,003 4477 1,805
Subordinated loan with parent undertaking 21 15,000 15,000 -
Total habilities 1,007,985 868,794 864,855
Equity
Share capital 24 1,500 1 500 1,500
Share premium 24 11,710 11,710 11,710
Retaned earnings 98,677 84 563 98,538
Total equity 111,887 97,773 111,748
Total hablities and equity 1,119,872 966,567 976,603

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 20 February 2012

and were signed on 1its behalf by

DrryYe e

R P Stockton
Finance Director

A D Pomfret
Chief Executive

Company registered number 01443919

12

Rathbone Investment Management Limitad
Report and financial statements 2011




Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Restated (Note 2)
Note £000 £7000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 36,062 24,037
Net interest income {(9,317) (8,764)
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment ({2 37
Deprecration and amortisation 8,748 8,230
Impairment of investments in subsidiary undertakings 18 - 453
Interest paid (1,658) {1,375)
Interest received 11,565 11,651
45,383 34,215
Changes 1n operating assets and hiabilities
- net (increase)/decrease loans and advances to banks and customers (6,348) 23,979
- net decrease/{(increase) 1n settlement balance debtors 1,746 (2 980)
- net increase prepayments, accrued income and other assets {3,007) (2,957
- net increase/(decrease) in amounts due to customers and deposits by banks 146,928 (5,271)
- net (decrease)/increase 1n settlement balance creditors (5604) 5,032
- net (decreasel/increase in accruals, deferred income provisions and other habilities (12,984) 649
Cash generated from operations 171,154 52,667
Tax paid (11,144) (5.680)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 160,010 46,987
Cash flows from investing activities
Acgqusttion of busmnesses net of cash acquired 18 - (21)
Ligutdation of businesses, nct of cash transferred 18 - 650
Purchase ol property, equipment and itangible assets (8,252) (29,928)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 41 128
Purchase of investment sccunties (1,565,418) (1,679,090}
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment securities 1,472,520 1,622,005
Net cash used in investing activities (101,109) (86,256)
Cash flows from financing activities
New subordinated loan with parent undentaking 21 - 15 000
Dividends pawd 9 (12,000) {31,840)
Net cash used in financing activities (12,000) {16,840)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and eash equivalents 16,901 {56,109}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 68,285 124 394
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 29 115,186 68,285
The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 49 form an integral part of the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Reporting entity

Rathbone Investment Management Limited {the Company) 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in Great Britain under the
Companies Act 2006 The address of the Company’s registered office 1s The Pont of Liverpool Building, Prer Head, Liverpool
L3 INW The nature of the Company’s operations and 1ts principal activities are set out in the business review on page 1

2 Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance wath International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS’ ) as adopted by
the European Union

Restatement of loans and advances to customers, accruals and deferred income, and amounts due to customers
All staff are employed by the Company’s ultimate parent, Rathbone Brethers Ple, which recharges to the Company the costs for thase
staff that perform duties for 1t [istorically the resultant accruals and deferred income in relation to the remuneration of those staff has
been recognised in the financial statements of the Company However, the presentation of these items has been amended in these
financial statements to reflect that the legal obhgation or entitlement hes with the ulimate parent company The comparative amounts
have been restated to be consistent with this presentation  As a result, amounts due from group undertakings (presented within loans
and advances to customers) as at 31 December 2010 have ncreased by £432,000 (2009 £386,000), accruals as at 31 December 2010
have reduced by £15,104,000 (2009 £15,240,000) and amounts due to group undertakings (presented within amounts due to
customers) as at 31 December 2010 have increased by £14,672,000 (2009 £14,854,000)

Developments in reporting standards and interpretations

Standards affecting the financial statements

in the current year, there have been no new or revised Standards and Interpretations that have been adopted and have affected the
amounts reported 1n these financial statements

Standards not affecting the reported results or the financial position

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current year Their adoption has not had any
significant impact on the amounts reported 1 these financial statements but may impact the accounting for future transactions and
arrangements

IAS 24, ‘Related Party Disclosures (revised 2009)

Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Tnancial Instruments Disclosures’ as part of ‘Improvements to IFRS (2010)
Amendments to IAS | ‘Presentation of I'inancial Statements® as part of ‘Improvements to IFRS {2010y
Amendments to [AS 34 'Internim Financial Reporting’ as part of ‘Improvements to [FRS (2010)’

Amendments to [FRIC 14 ‘Prepayments of a Mimmum Funding Requirement’ have been adopted in the current year but have had no
material impact on these financial statements

New Standards and Interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to Standards and Interpretations are effective for annual periods beginnmg after 1 January
2011, and therefore have not been applied in prepaning these consolidated financial statements None of these 1s expected to have a
significant affect on the financial statements of the Company, except for IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and TAS19 Employee benefits
which are not yet adopted by the EU and are not eapected 10 become mandatory for periods commencing before 1 January 2015

IFRS 9 Financial mstruments could change the classification and measurement of financial assets The Company does not plan to
adopt this standard early and the extent of the impact has not been determined

Basis of preparation

The company has taken advantage of the exemption allowed by Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not prepared
consoclidated financial statements as it 1s a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of Rathbone Brothers Plc a company registered in
England & Wales Rathbone Brothers Plc 1s the parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial
statements Copies of the Group accounts may be obtained from the Company secretary, Rathbone Brothers Plc 159 New Bond Street,
London W18 2UD With effect from 27 February 2012, this address will change to 1 Curzon Street, London W1J 5FB  The financial
statements present information about the Company as a single entity only

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair value

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements estimates and
assumptions that affect the apphcation of accounuing policies and the reported amounts of assets liabilities, income and expenses
Actual results may differ from these estimates
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Financial Services Compensation Scheme levies

The arrangements put in place by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) to protect depositors and investors from loss in
the event of failure of financial stiutions have resulted 1n sigmificant levies on the industry in recent years  The financial impact of
FSCS levies are largely out of the Cempany’s control as they result from other industry failures

In January 2011, the Company recetved invoices totalling £3 0 mullwon i relation to interim levies by the FSCS following the faillure
of Keydata Investment Services Limited (Keydata) and other intermediaries  These charges were presented as an exceptional levy 1n
the financial statements in 2010 No such exceptional levies have been aceried 1 2011 as no further large and unexpected levies have
been made by the F'SCS  Levies of £353,000 have been included within administrative expenses 1 2011

There 1s a sigmficant degree of uncertainty over the level of future FSCS levies as this depends on the ulumate cost to the FSCS of the
failure of other entities n the financial services mdustry The FSCS announced 1n its December 2011 Qutlook Statement that 1t
expects to have to raise an mterim levy of £40 million against the mvestment intermediary class of firms, which includes the
Company followmg additional compensauion cests mcurred from Keydata and other stock brokers  An accrual of £34,000 has been
charged to the income statement 1n 2011 for the Company’s share of this  Against this, the FSCS are pursuing recovertes from parties
found to be responsible for mis-selling Keydata investments  Whilst any recovenies are expected to reduce future levies, the amount
and ttming of these reductions 1s unknown

The I'SCS has also announced that 1t 13 considering whether 1t will be able to pay claims 10 investors who have incurred losses on
investments with CF Arch Cru Funds and MF Global Investors, followang the failure of both entittes  The FSCS has not yet quantified
the likely cost of compensation to affected investors but it notes that, 1f such compensation 1s payable, the additional levies would
likely tngger a cross-subsidy by the investment management class of firms, which would be a cost 10 the Company [11s currently not
possible to quantify the impact of these failures

We understand that the FSCS are 1n the process of re-negotiating the terms of the £18 billion of loans that 1t tock out n 2008/09 to
cover the costs of five major depositor failures, and that the FSCS hopes to bring these negotiations to a conclusion before the end of
June 2012 Any increase n the interest cost of these loans will result 1 an increase m the annual costs of the FSCS levies borne by the
Company

Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements

Going concern

The Company s business activities together with the factors likely to affect 11s future development, performance and position are set
out in the Directors’ report As set out 1n the balance sheet, the Company has a surplus of current essets and 1s well capitahised The
Company has no external finance The Company’s objectives, polictes and processes for managing its capital are set out 1n note 26 to
the financial statements Details of the Company’s financial risk management objectives and uts financial instruments, and 1ts exposure
to credit nsk, market risk and hiquidity nisk are set out 1 note 25 to the financial statements

The directors have, at the ume of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue m operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting 1n preparing the financial statements  In forming their view, the directors have considered a period of more than twelve
months

15 Rathbone Investment Management Limited
Report and financial statements 2011




Notes to the financial statements continued

2. Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies continued

Impairment
Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment, both when there 15 an indication of
impairment and annoally

Financial assets and other assets with finite useful lives are assessed at the reporting date, or 1f there 1s objective evidence of
impatrment, during the accounting period  1f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 15 estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (1f any) Held to maturity investment securities and loans and receivables are considered
individually for impairment

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets 1s the higher of fair value less any cost to sell and value 1n use In assessing value 1in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted The recoverable amount of held to maturity investment secunties and loans and receivables 15 calculated as the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate of the asset on recognition Where an asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs

Impairment of available for sale secunities 1s caleulated as the cumulative loss that has been previously recognised directly i equity at
the time that objective evidence of imparrment 1s identified

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 1s estimated to be less than ts carrytng amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash generating unit 1s reduced 1o 1ts recoverable amount  Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately

Where an impairment loss (excluding goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset, except for equity instruments,
or cash generating unt 15 increased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrymg amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash
generating unit 1 prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s
carried at a revalued amount, 1n which case the reversal of the impairment loss s treated as a revaluation increase

An impairment loss 1n respect of a held to maturity security or loans and recervables 1s reversed if the subsequent increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised

An impairment loss in respect of an investment 1 equity instruments classified as available for sale 1s not reversed through profit or
loss If the fair value of a debt mstrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurning afler the impairment loss was recognised n profit or loss, the impatrment 1s reversed through profit or loss

Segment information

Under IFRS 8 Operating Segments the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to disclose financial information on the Company’s
business activities in which 1t engages and the econorme envirenments i which 1t operates, as 1t has not :ssued any debt or equity
struments that are traded in a public market place and 1t does not file accounts with a regulated orgamisation for the purpose of
issuing any class of instruments 1n a public market place
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Basis of preparation and principal accounting pohcies continued

Net interest income

Interest tncome and expense are recogmised as earned in the income statement for all instruments measured at amortised cost and for
available for sale debt instruments using the effective interest method Dividends receivable from money market funds are included
within net interest income

The effective interest method 15 a method of calculaung the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hability and of allocating
the interest income or 1nterest expense over the relevant pertod The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected hife of the financial instrument or, when approprniate, a shorter period 1o the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability When calculating the efiective interest rate, the Company estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial mstrument but does not consiuder future credit losses The calculation includes
all fees and interest pard or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income 18
recogmised using the rate of interest used to discount the futere cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss

Interest expense and simitar charges comprise mnterest on borrowings, unwinding of discount on provistons and impairment losses
recognised on financial assets

Foreign currency gaimns and losses are reported on a net basis

Fees and commissions
Investment management and service fees are recogmised over the period in which the service 1s provided

Commussions receivable and payable are recognised 1n the pertod 1n which they are eamed

Intra-group management charges

The intra-group management charges arise 1n relation to certain overheads that are imtially borne by the Company and then recharged
to other Group Companies

Operating leases

Lease agreements which do not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the Company are
classified as operating leases Payments made under operating leases are recogmised 1n the income statement on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease  Lease expensc recognised in the income statement 1s adjusted for the impact of any lease incentives

Investments in subsidiary undertakungs
Shares in subsidiary undertakings are carried at cost except where provisions are made for permanent impairment in value

Property, plant and equipment

All property plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
Historical cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost of assets to their estimated residual value over their esumated useful lives, using the
strarght line method, on the following bases

s Leasehold property over the lease term
¢ Plant, equipment and computer hardware over three to ten years

The assets’ residual lives are reviewed and adjusted 1f appropnate, at each balance sheet date

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount  These are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's imterest in the fair
value of the tdenutfiable assets habihities and contingent habihties of a business at the date of acquisiion

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset and 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually, or when other occasions or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired  Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the profit or loss and 1s not
subsequently reversed

On disposal of a business the attnbuted amount of geodwill that has not been subject to imparment 15 included in the deterrmination of
the profit or loss on disposal
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies continued

Intangible assets continued

{b) Computer software and software development costs

Acquired compuier software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the spectfic software
These costs are amortised on the basis of the expected useful lives (three to four years)

Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company are
recognised as intangible assets when the recognition requirements of 1AS 38 are met Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised using the straight-hine method over their useful lives (not exceeding four years)

Costs associated with developing or mamtaining computer software programs that are not recognised as assets are recognised as an
expense as incurred

(c) Chient relationships

Client relationships acquired are iitially recogmised at cost  Those m respect of business combinations are imitially recognised at fair
value Client relationships have a finite usclul life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation  Amortisation 1s calculated
using the straight line method 10 allocate the cost of the client relationships over their estimated useful lives (ten to fifteen years)
When chient relationships are lost the full amount of unamortised cost 1s recognised immediately and the intangible asset 15 de-
recognised

Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets n the following categories

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- loans and receivables,

e  held-to-matunty mvestments

- available for sale financial assets and
e nvestments

The classification of financial assets 1s determined at imtial recognition  F'nancial assets are initially recognised at fair value and then
carried at amortised cost

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception, and changes theretn are recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income A financial asset 1s classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or 1f so designated Dernivatives, which are categorised as fair value
through profit or loss, are reported within other assets or other Liabilities

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an active market
They artse when the Company provides money of services to a debtor or purchases a loan with no intention of trading the recervabie
Loans and recetvables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment

(¢) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-denivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Company’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to matunty other than those that meet the definition of loans and
recesvables or that the Company has classificd as available for sale or fair value through profit or loss  Held-to-maturity investments
are measurcd at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any imparrment, with revenue recognised on an effective yreld
basis

(d) Available for sale

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified 1n any of the other
categories Available for sale investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite peniod of time, which may be sold 1n response
to needs for liquidity or changes n interest rates exchange rates or equity prices

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held-to-matunty and available for sale are recognised on the
trade date — the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset Loans are recognised when cash 1s advanced to the
borrowers Financial assets are imtially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carmed at fair value
through profit or loss Financial assets are derecognised when the rnights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
been effectively transferred, or where the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Basis of preparation and principal accounting policies continued

Financial assets continued

(d) Availtable for sale continued

Available for sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carmed at farr value Loans
and recewvables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method Gains and losses
ansing from changes 1n the fair value of the * financtal assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are included 1n the income
statement tn the period in which they arnise Gains and losses ansing from changes 1n the fair value of available for sale financial assets
are recognised 1n the statement of other comprehensive income and presented 1n the available for sale reserve in equity, until the
financial asset 15 sold, derecogmsed or impaired at which time the cumulauve gain or loss previously recogmsed 1n equity should be
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income  However, interest calculated using the effective interest method 15 recogmsed
1n the Statement of comprehensive income

The fair values of quoted financial instruments 1n active markets are based on current bid prices If the market for a financial asset 15
not active (and for unhsted securities), the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used
by market participants

Derivative financial instruments

From ume to iime the Company may hold Forward Rate Agreements (FRAs) to hedge 11s foreign currency and nterest rate risk
exposures The net interest paid or received on FRASs 15 recorded on an effective interest rate basis from the settlement date and
included within net interest in the statement of comprehensive income  The notional value of the FRAS 15 not recorded on the balance
sheet

Denvatives are imtially recogmised at fair value at the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured to
their fair value at each balance sheet date The resulung gain or loss 15 recogmsed n profit or loss immediately unless the denivative 1s
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, 1n which event the timing of the recognition 1n the profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship

Fimnancial habihties

Financial liabilities are inteally recognised when the Company becomes contractually bound to the transfer of economic benefits 1n the
future

(a) Deposits and borrowings
All deposits and borrowings are minally recogmsed at the fair value of the consideration received  After initial recognition deposits
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Amortised cost 1s calculated by
taking nto account any 1ssue cosis and any discounts or premium on settlement  Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
pertod 1n which they are incurred

(b) Non-derivative financial hamlities

The Company imitially recogmises debt securities 1ssued and subordinated liabihities on the date that they are originated Such financial
liabilimies are recogmised imually at fair value plus any directly attnbutable transaction costs Subsequent to mitiat recognition these
financial habilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event which 111s
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be rehably estimated  Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected 1o be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime
value of money and the nsks specific to the obligation  The increase 1n the provision due to the passage of time 15 recogmised within
Interest expense

Foreign currenctes

The Company's functional and presentattonal currency 1s sterhing  Transactions in currenctes other than the relevant Company’s
functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date,
monetary assets and habihities that are denominated 1n foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date Non-monetary financial assets carried at faur value that are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determuned

Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are mcluded 1n net profit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences ansing on
non-monetary assets and habilities where the changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Basis of preparatien and principal accounting policies continued

Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax 15 recognised n the income statement except to the extent
that 1t relates to 1lems recognised directly in equity, in which case 1t 1s recognised in equity

Current tax receivable or payable 1s the expected tax recervable or payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax receivable or payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liabilny method m respect of temporary differences arising from differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used 1n the
computation of taxable profit In principle deferred tax habihties are recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recogmsed to the extent that 1t 15 probable that taxable profits will be available agamnst which deductible temporary differences may
be utihsed Such assets and habilities are not recognised 1f the temporary difference arises

«  from the initial recognition of goodwill for which amortisation 15 not deductible for tax purposes, or
e from the mitial recognition of other assets and liabilities 1n a transaction, which affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit. other than i a business combination

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences, except where the Company 1s able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it 15 the Company’s intention not to reverse the temporary difference i the foreseeable future

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets arc reviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits wiil be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the liabihty s settled or when the asset 15 realised Deferred tax 15 charged or credited 1n the income
statement, excupt when it relates to tems credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in
equity

Deferred tax assets and habihues are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonity and the Company
ntends to settle 1ts current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits which may be accessed without penalty

Cash equivalents comprise short-term highly hquid investments with a maturity of less than three months from the date of acquisition

T'or the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts

Fiduciary activities
The Company holds certain monies 1n accordance with the Client Money Rules of the Financial Services Authonity

Employee Benefits

The Company’s parent operates share based payment incentive schemes and defined benefit pension schemes for the benefit of its
employees The associated charges to profit that relate to employees that provide services to the Company are recharged 10 the
Company by its parent Recharges relating to pension costs are discloscd within staff costs Recharges relating to share based
paymenits are included within administrative expenses

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plans are recharged to the Company by the parent company Payments to defined
contnbution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

The full disclosure relating to the share based payments and defined benefit pension schemes are available in the Rathbone Brothers
Plc report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2011

Balances with clients and counterparties
In accordance with market practice, certain balances with chients and market counterparties are presented gross for unsettled bought
and sold transactions within debtors and creditors
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Notes to the financial statements continued

3 Cnitical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation and uncertainty

The Company makes cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiltties within the next financial year
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

Chent relationship intangibles

The Company makes estimates about the expected duration of client relationships to determine the penod over which related
intangible assets are amortised The amortisation period 1s estimated with reference to historical data on account closure rates and
management’s expectations for the future During the year chient relationship intangible assets were amortised over a 10 to 15 year
pertod Amertisation of £3,461,000 was charged during the year A reduction in the average amortisation period of 1 year would
increase the amortisation charge by approximately £399,000

In determining whether a chieat relationship 15 lost management consider factors such as the level of funds withdrawn and other
retained family relationships

Financial Services Compensation Scheme levies

The arrangements put 1n place by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme ('FSCS') to protect depositors and investors from loss
in the event of faslure of finaneial insututions have resulied 1 sigmificant FSCS levies on the industry in recent years The financial
impact of FSCS levies are largely out of our control as they result from other industry failures

The FSCS announced on 20 January 2011 that it would be raising an intenim levy of £326 mellion, principally to cover the cost of
compensating investors from the farlure of Keydata Investment Services Limited (Keydata) and other intermediaries On 24 January
2011 the Company recetved an invoice for £2,969,000 1n relation to the Keydata faiture and other intermediaries  This cost was
charged to profit in the financial statements 1 2010 and due to 1ts exceptional nature was separately analysed on the Statement of
comprehensive income with other FSCS levies

In December 2011 the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) announced an indicative additional levy of £40m 1n relaton
to the Keydata and Willis & Co failures with potential additional levies i relation to MF Global The businesses share of the £40m
tevy 1s estimated at £34 000 and has been fully provided for in the 2011 financial statements The business continucs to contribute to
the banking levy and estimates provisions based on the guidance provided to the industry by the FSCS

The total amount relating to FSCS levies charged to the mcome statement during 2011 was £353,000 (2009 £3 353 000) but to the
nen exceptional nature of the charge 1s included within other operating expenses
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Notes to the financial statements continued

4 Net interest income

2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Interest income
Held to maturnity investment securities 9,028 8,083
Available for sale investment securtties 297 555
Loans and advances 10 banks and customers 1,657 1,544
10,982 10,182
Interest expense
Banks and customers (1,665) (1.418)
Net interest income 2,317 8,764
5 Operating expenses
1011 2010
£000 £'000
Staff costs (note 6) 51,999 48,811
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note t 5} 2,380 2,203
Amortisation of internally generated intangible assets included 1n operating
cxpenses (note 17) 357 335
Amortisation of purchased software (note 17} 1,122 998
Auditors’ remuneration {see below) 288 3188
Recharges to tellow Group undertakings 5,890 4,908
Operating lease rentals () 5,869 4,572
Other 21,177 22441
Other operating expenses 89,082 84,676
Exceptional tevies tor the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (1) - 3,353
Amortisation of client relationshup intangible assets (note 17) 4,969 4,694
Total operating expenses 94,051 92,723

(1} The arrangements put in place by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme ('FSCS') to protect depositors and investors from loss in the
event of falure of financial institutions resulted in significant FSCS levies on the ndustry  The failure of Keydata Investment Services
Limited (Keydata) and other intermediaries resulted in a considerable increase in the levy made by the FSCS to the Company in the 2010/11
levy year, which was recogmised 1n the financial statements 1n 2010 The Company has accrued £Ni1an 2011 (2010 £3,353,000) 1n respect of
its share of the cost of FSCS borowings mcluding a provision for the 2010/2011 levy year, of which £2,913,000 relates 1o Keydata  Further
charges tor historical {allures by financial institutions are hikely to be incurred 1n future years and the ulimale cost remains uncertan
(note 27)

{11) Operating lease rentals include recharges from the Company's parent, Rathbone Brothers Ple, the Company's ultimate parent
undertaking, which hold the leascs on bihalf of the Company The total rental recharge from Rathbone Brothers Ple m 2011 was £5,817,000
(2010 £4,572,000)

A more detailed analysis of auditors’ remuneration 1s provided below

o1 2010

£'000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors tor the audit of the Company’s

annual accounts 137 157
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and their associates for other
services to the Company

- other services pursuant to legisiation 118 38

- 1ax services 33 52

- amounts relating to prior years - 38

- other services - 103

Total 288 388
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Notes to the financial statements continued

6 Staff costs

The Company does not employ any staff All Rathbone Group staff are employed by Rathbone Brothers Plc, the Company’s ultimate parent
undertaking, and related costs for those employees that provide services to the Company are recharged to the Company The total staff costs

recharged to the Company were as follows

011 2010

£ 000 1 000
‘Wages and salaries 44,113 41,623
Social security costs 5,129 4,807
Pension costs 2,787 2,381
51,999 48,811

The average number of employees during the year was as follows 2011 2010
Investment Management 277 258
Dealing and investment management support 178 161
Central services 184 179
639 598

Included above are costs relating to employees providing central services that are recharged to fellow subsidianies as part of the intra-group

managemen! recharges

7 Directors' emoluments

Directors are employed by Rathbone Brothers Ple, the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking  Directors remuneration associated with their

position as directors of the Company was as follows

w011 2010
£ 000 £000
Emoluments for quahfying services 2,303 2,314
Amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes 776 952
Contributions to money purchase schemes 19 19
3,098 3,285
The aggregate emoluments and amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes of the highest paid director was £451,352
(2010 £495,892) He 1s a member of twao defined benefit pension schemes, under which his accrued pension at the year end was
£82,781 (2010 £77,917)
2011 2010
Rettrement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under
Money purchase schemes 3 3
Defined benefit schemes 9 19
The number of directors, tn respect of whose services shares in the ultimate parent
undertaking were recerved or recelvable under long term incentive plans was 15 16
The number of directors who exercised share options during the year was 1 1
8 Income tax expense
2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
Current tax 10,697 8,183
Adjustments 1n respect of previous years 27) 169
Deferred tax {note 16) (722) (2 180)
9,948 6,172
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8 [Income tax expense continued

The tax charge on profit from continuing operations for the year 1s hugher (2010 lower) than the standard rate of corporation 1ax in
the UK of 26 5% (2010 28 0%) The differences are explained below

2011 2010
£'000 £000
Tax on profit from ordinary activities at the standard rate of 26 5% (2010 28 0%) 9,554 6,731
Etfects of
Disallowable expenses 361 306
Adjustments 1n respect of transfer pnicing 16 (153)
Adjustments for non-taxable intra-group dividends - (669)
(Qver) provision for tax in previous years 30) (173)
Other uming differences - 128
Change 1n 1ax rate 47 2
9,948 6,172

The UK Government has proposed thai the UK corporation tax rate 15 reduced to 24 0% ever the next four years

At 3] December 2011 the second step of this reduction, to 25 0% (2010 27 0%) has been substantvely enacted Consequently, deferred tax
assets and hizbilities are calculated at 25 0% (2010 27 0%)

9 Dividends paid

2011 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Ameounts recognised as distributions to equity helders 1n the year
- first interim dividend tor the year 12,000 15,000
- second interim dividend for the year - 15,000
- third intenim dividend for the year - 1,840
12,000 31,840
10 Cash
101t 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Cash in hand 3 3
11 Loans and advances to banks
2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
Repayable
- on demand or a1 shon nolice 21,183 24,895
- 3 months or less excluding on demand or at short notice 30,000 6,387
52,183 31,282
Amounts include loans with
- variable interest rates 22,183 21,724
- fixed interest rates 30,000 9,558
52,183 31,282

The fair value of loans and advances 1s not matenially different to their carrying amount  Fair value has been calculated as the discounted amount
of estimated future cash flows expected to be received using current market rates
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11 Loans and advances to banks continucd

Loans and advances to banks tnctuded 1n cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2011 amounted to £52,183,169 (note 29)
(2010 £31,282,000)

The Company’s exposure to credit nisk ansing from loans and advances to banks 1s described 1in note 23

12 Loans and advances to customers

1011 fLI 2009
Revated (Note 2) Reviated (Noie 2)
£'000 £000 £ 000
Repayable
- on demand or at short notice 9,446 7,135 10,844
- 3 months or less excluding on demand or ai short notice 11,036 9835 6,669
- | year or less but over 3 months 25,343 22,039 12,016
45,825 39,009 29,529
Amounts include loans with
- vanable interest rates 41,166 34,831 29,477
- non-tnterest bearing 4,659 4,178 52
45,825 19,009 29,529

The farr value of loans and advances 1s not materially different to their carrying amount  Faur value has been calculated as the discounted amount
of esttmated future cash flows expected to be recerved using current market rates

Loans and advances te customers include amounts due from fellow Group undertakings of £4,593,000 (2010 £4,125,000, 2009 £6,570 000}
There are no non-performing banking loans and advances 1o customers as 21 31 December 2011 (2010 wone, 2009 none)
The Company’s exposure to credit risk ansing from loans and advances to customers 1s described in note 25

13 Investment securities

Available for sale securities

2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Money market funds - at fair value
- unlisted 63,000 37,000
Held to maturity secunities
2011 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Debt securities - at amortised cost
- unlisted 843,983 751,085
843,983 751,085
Maturity of debt securities
2011 2010
£ 000 £000
Due within 1 year 833,983 731,085
Due afier more than | year 10,000 20 000
843,983 751,085

Debt securities comprise bank and building society certificates of deposit, which have fixed coupaons and treasury bills

The fair value of debt securities at 31 December 2011 was £848,095,000 (2010 £754,893,000) Fair value for held to maturity assets 1s based
on market bid prices
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13 Investment securities continued

Available for sale securities are money market funds which declare daity dividends that are 1n the nature of interest at a variable rate and which
are realisable on demand, have been included within cash equivalents (note 29)

The Company has not reclassified any financial assct between bemng measured at amortised cost and being measured at fair value through profit
or loss during the year (2010 none reclassified) The Company has not designated at initial recogmuion any financial asset as at *far value'

through profit or loss

The movement in investment securiues may be summarised as follows

Avatable for sale Held to maturity Total
£'000 £ 000 £000
At | January 2010 84,000 694,000 778,000
Additions 478,000 1,679,090 2,157,690
Disposals (525,000) (1,622,005) (2,147,005)
At January 2011 37,000 751,085 788,085
Additions 452,000 1,565,418 2017418
Disposals (sales and redemption) (426.,000) (1,472,520) (1,898,520)
At 31 December 2011 63,000 843,983 206,983
14 Prepayments, accrued income and other assets
2011 2010
£ 400 £ 000
Prepayments 2,713 3,648
Accrued income 24,918 21,925
Other assets 3,713 3,873
31,404 29,446

included within other assets 1 2010 was £3,100,000 of advance paymcnts to Lloyds Banking Group n relation to the transfer of investment
management activities (note 17) of which was fully repaid by Lloyds Banking Group en 24 January 2011 following the final determination of

funds transferred from the Lloyds legacy discretionary investment management business

15 Property, plant and equipment

Short term
leasehold Plant and
improvements equiptient Total
£ 000 £ 000 000
Cost
At l January 2011 7,897 11,157 19,054
Additions 5,189 1,729 6,918
Disposals - (1,073) (1,073)
At 31 December 2011 13,086 11,813 24,899
Depreciation
At 1 January 2011 4,329 8,587 12,916
Charge for the year 906 1,474 2,380
Disposals - {1,049) (1,049)
At 31 December 2011 5,235 9,012 14,247
Carrying amount 3t 31 December 2011 7,851 2,801 10,652
Carrying amount at 31 December 2010 3,568 2,570 6,138
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15 Property, plant and equipment continued

The Company occuptes premises feased by 11s parent company for which n 1s recharged a pro-rata rental Leasehold improvements represent
amounts capnalised by the Company on tmproving those pants of the building 1t occupies The amortisation period 1s based an the assumption
that the Company will continue to occupy the premrses for the remaining period of the lease held by the Company’s parent

16 Deferred tax asset
Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the Liability method using an effective tax rate of 25 0%
(2010 23 0%}

The movement on the deferred tax account 15 as follows

2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
At | January 57 (2,123)
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years 3 343
Other movements 1n deferred tax
Amounts credited to the income statement 719 1,837
779 57
Deferred tax asset
2014 2010
i 000 £000
Excess of depreciation 760 870
Intangible asscts 1 1
761 871
Deferred tax habihties
2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
Staff related costs 30 (681)
Software development costs (62) {133)
18 (814)
The deferred tax charge in the income statement comprises the following temporary differences
2011 2010
Looe £000
Excess ot depreciation (1o 5
Staff related costs 761 427
Sottware development costs 71 94
Intangible assets - 1,654
722 2,180
17 Intangible assets
1011 2010
£°000 £ 000
Goodwill 15,204 15,204
Other intangible assets 44,076 42,834
59,280 58,038
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17 Intangible assets continued

Goodwill
2011 2010
£ 00G £ 000
Cost
At i January 15,204 15,204
At 31 December 15,204 15,204
Accumulated impairment losses
At | January - -
At 3] December N N
Net carrytng amount of goodwill at 31 December 15,204 15,204

The recoverable amounts of goodwill allocated are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions for the value in

use calculations are those regarding the discount rates and growth rates during the period  Management estimates discount rates using pre tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of moncy and the risks specific to the business  The growth rates are based on industry
growth forecasts The Company prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management, covering
the forthcoming year based on flat market assumptions and organic growth in line with historical rates Budgets are extrapolated for up to ten
years based on a medum to long term growth rate of 3% (2010 3% ) based on management's expectation of future industry growth rates A ten
year extrapolation period 1s chosen based on management's expectation of the duration of chient relationshups  The pre tax rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows s 10% (2010 10%) based on a nisk adjusted weighted average cost of capital, reflecting the matkets in which the Company

operaics

Other intangible asscts

Saftware
Chent development Purchzsed
relabonshups costs software Toial

£'000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2011 47,586 2,520 12,468 62,574
Internally deveioped in the year - 340 - 340
Revaluation (804) - - (804)
Purchased in the year 6,351 - 1,723 8,074
Disposals (912) - - (212)
At 31 December 2011 52,221 2,860 14,191 69,272
Amortisation
At 1 January 2011 8,225 1,780 9,735 19,740
Revaluation (80) - - (80)
Charge for the year 4,969 357 1,122 6,448
Disposals (912) - - {912)
At 31 December 2011 12,202 2,137 10,857 25,196
Carrying amount at 31 December 2011 40,019 723 3,334 44,076
Carrying amount at 31 December 2010 39,361 740 2,731 42,834
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17 Intangible assets continued

Other intangible assets continued

Purchases of acquired client relationships relate to payments made to investment managers and third parties for the introduction
of client relattonships, net of adjustments to consideration payments of £804,000 (2010 £nil} The amortisation charge for
acquired client relattonships has been reduced by £80,000 (2010 £n1l) as a result of the adjustments to consideration payments

Purchased software with a cost of £8 881,000 (2010 £7,957,000) has been fully amortised but 1s still 1n use

Chent relationships comprnise the following amounts

Deferved Fayments
remuneration o third
CORIS parties Tota!
£ 000 £'000 £7000
Net book value
At 1 January 2011 16,383 22,978 39,361
Revaluation (804) - (804)
Purchased n the year 6,315 36 6,351
Amorttsation charge tor the year (2,250) (2,719) (4,969)
Amortisation charge on revalued assels 80 - 80
At 31 December 2011 19,724 20,295 40,019

18 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in

subsidiaries

£ 000
At ] January 2010 3,592
Addittons 21

Liguidations (650)

Impairment {453)
At 1 January 2011 2,510
Additions -
Ligquidations -
impairment -
At 31 December 2011 2,510

At 31 December 2011 subsidiary undertakings were as follows

Subsidiary undertaking Country of incorporation Activity and operatton
Rathbone Investiment Management International Limued Jersey Investment management
Citywall Nomunees Limited England & Wales Non trading
Rathbone Nomunees Limited England & Wales Non trading
RIM Nominees Limited England & Wales Non trading
Neilson Cobbold Client Nominees Limited England & Wales Non trading
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18 Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings continued

The Company direcily owns 100% of the ordinary share capital of all subsidiaries and the accounting reference date of all subssdiary undertakings
15 31 December

On 29 July 2010 the Company acquired 100% of the share caputal of Citywall Nomunees Limited from a feliow Group undertaking for cash
consideration of £100

Liquidation procecds of £645,000 from the voluntary liquidation of the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Rathbone Bank (BVI) Limuted were
recetved on the 12 Cetober 2010 Rathbone Bank (BVI) Limued was struck off on 5 November 2010

On 14 Apnil 2010 the Company made a final payment of £21,000 relating to the 2008 acquisition of its wholly owned subsidiary Citywall
Financial Management Limited (Citywall) On 21 December 2010 the Company completed the voluntary hquidation of Citywall A final dividend
of £388,000 was paid to the Company prior to hquidation Following the decision to cease trading and hiquidate Citywall, the camying value of the
Company’s investment 1n Citywall was written down by £463,000 to Citywall’s net asset value Liquidation proceeds of £5,000 were ofiset
against an equal amount owed to Citywall

19 Deposits by banks

1011 2016
£'000 £000
Unsecured bank overdrafls, repayable on demand 513 215

The fair value of deposits by banks was not matenally didterent to the carrying value Fair value has been calculated as the discounted amount of
esttmated future cash flows expected to be paid using current market rates

20 Due to customers

2011 2010 2009
Resated (Note 2) Rewvaicd (Now 2)
£'000 £ 000 £ 000
Repayable
- on demand or at short notice 909,640 768,210 758,068
- 3 months or less excluding on demand or at short notice 41,879 43,333 59,736
- 1 year or less but over 3 months 350 521 1,554
951,869 812,066 819,358
Amounts include
- variable interest rates 863,511 713,226 702,705
- hixed nterest rates 40,437 44,288 59,060
- non-interest bearing 47,921 54,552 57,593
951,869 812,066 819,358

Due to customers includes amounts due trom fellow Group undertakmgs of £43,213,000 (2010 £50,042,000, 2009 £52,141,000)

The fair value of amounts due to Lustomers was not materially different te their carrying value The estimated fair value of deposits with no
stated maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, 1s the amount repayable on demand Fair value of fixed-interest bearing deposits 15
based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with simujar remaining maturity
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21 Subordmated loan with parent undertaking

The amounts subject to subordinated loan agreements are shown below

Counterparty Repayment date Enterest rate 011 2010
£000 £000
Bank of England rate
Rathbone plus2 5% toa
Brothers Plc See below maximum of 5 0% 15,000 15,000
15,000 15,000

During 2010 the Company received a £15 million subordmated loan as pant of the Group’s capital management activities Interest 15 paid monthly
in arrears  No repayment of the loan shall be made tn whole, or part, earlier than five years from the date the loan was made, or five years from
the date on which the Company gives written notice to the parent undertaking and the FSA The FSA has the right under the agreement to refuse
consent to payment

22 Accruals, deferred income, provisions and other hzbilities

an 2010 2009

Reveared (Note 2) Revared (Note 2)

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Creditors 5917 4180 3 940
Accruals and deferred income 4,559 703% 4399
Other provisions (note 23) 6,828 5,357 17,250
17,304 17,176 25 589

Included 1n accruals and deferred income in 2010 was £3,353.000 (n refanion to the additional FSCS levy 1n relation to Keydata and other
intermediaries (note 5)

23 Other provisions

Deferred
contingent Litigation related
consideration and other Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
At | January 2011 4,881 476 5,357
Charged to the profit or loss - 60 60
Unused amount credited to profit or loss - (25) (26)
Net charge to the income statement - 34 34
Transter to other Group undertaking - - R
Other movements 5,551 - 5,551
Unhised/paid during the period (3,955) (159) (4,114)
6,477 351 6,328
Current 1,049 351 1,400
Non-current 5,428 - 5428
6,477 351 6,828

Other movements in provisions relate o deferred payments to invesiment managers and third parties for the introduction of client relatienships,
whuch have been capitalised and include £l (2010 £9,844,000) 1n relation to the agreement to acquire certain discretionary investment
management activities from Lloyds Banking Group {note 17)

In the ordinary course of business, the Company can receive complaints from clients in relation to the services provided Complaints are assessed
on a case by case basis and provisions for compensation are made where judged necessary Provisians have also been made 1n relation 1o a number
of cases where legal proceedings are expected to result in loss to the Company

The tming of settlement of provisions for client compensation or hitigation 1s dependent, 1n part, on the duration of negotiations with thard
parties Non-current provisions are expected to be settled within 24 months of the balance sheet date
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24 Share capital
The total number of 1ssued and fully paid up ordinary shares at 31 December 2011 was 1,500,000 (2010 1,500,000) with a par value of £1 per
share

There were no movements in share capital during the period

Share Share Total
capital premum
£1000 £'000 £'000
At 31 December 2010 1,500 11,710 13,210
At 3] December 2011 1,500 15,710 13,210

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from tume to ume, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of
the Company The ordinary shareholders are enuitled to any residual assets in the winding up of the Company

25 Financial risk management

The Company has 1dentified the risks ansing from its activities and has established policies and procedures to manage these items 1n accordance
with 1ts nsk appetite as described 1n the Group's Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process prepared 1n accardance with the requirements
of the Financial Services Authonty (the FSA) in us applicauion of the Capital Requirements Directive  The Company categorises its financial
risks into three areas

(1) credit nisk,

{1} hquidity nesk, and

(au) market risk (which includes fair value interest rate r1sk, cash flow interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk)

The sections below outhine the Group’s risk appetite w which the Company adheres and explain how it defines and manages each category of
financial nisk

The Group s nsk management policies are designed to identfy and analyse the risks that the Group faces, to set appropriate risk muts and
controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to imits by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems The Group regularly reviews
its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes i the business, counterparties, markets and the range of financial instruments that 1t
utilises

The Group's overall strategy and pelicies for monitering and management of financiat nsk are set by the Board of directors (the Board) The
Board has embedded nisk management within the business through the boards ot directors of the Group’s operating subsidianies and certain of the
boards standing commuttees The principal committees that have responsibility for the identification, mitigation and management of risks are the
Executive Commuittee, the Audit Commuttee, the Risk Management Commuttee and the Banking Commutiee, which 1s a standing committee of the
board of directors of Rathbone Invesiment Management Limited (the RIM Beard)

The Treasury Department, reporting through the Banking Commattee, has principal responsiility for monitoring exposure to credit nisk, hiquidity
risk and market sk Procedures and delegated authorities are documented 1n a Group Treasury Manual and policy documents are (n place to
cover the management and monitoring of each type of risk  The primary objective of the Group’s treasury policy 1s 1o manage short-term
liquedity requirements whilst maintaining an appropriate level of exposure 1o other financial risks n accordance with the Group s risk appetite

During the second half of 2011, concerns have grown about the strength and stability of certain Eurozone cconomues, 1n particular whether the
Greek, Italian or Spamish governments would default on their debt  This, in turn, increased speculation on the future of the Euro and whether the
more heavily indebted countries would continue to participate in 1t

A break-up of the Euro, shouid 1t accur, 15 likely to result in a protracted recession in the Euro area and wider disruption to global financial
markets Such an event would be expected to have an adverse effect on the Company’s trading conditions  This mught include falls in the values
of financial assets, the potential loss of capital and hquidity through counterparty defaults and further reductions in interest rate margins

The Company’s treasury porifolio 1s well diverstfied and does include some exposures to a number of banks around Europe The controls around
the treasury portfolio are set out 1 detail on page 41 The Banking Commuttee has been paricularly active thes year n assessing the expected
impact of the Eurozone 1ssues  As a result, during the year we have moved increasing amounts of morey inte UK government bonds (gilts)

and treasury bills By the end of the year these totalled some 9 6% of the total treasury assets of £909,593,000, of which all were rated

Fitch A or above
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(1) Credit nisk

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which 15 the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due through 1ts
Banking and Treasury advisory activities  The principal source of credit risk anses from placing funds with other banks and building societies and
holding interest bearing secunittes  The Company also has exposure to credit risk through (s loan books and guarantees given on clients behalves

It 1s the Company’s policy to place funds generated internally and from deposits by clients with a range of high quality financial institutions
Investments are spread to avold excessive exposure to any individual counterparty  Loans made to clients are secured against clients’ assets that
are held and managed by the Company

Exposure to credit nisk 1s managed through setting appropnate ratings requirements and lending imits  Limuts are reviewed regularly, taking into
account the ability of borrowers and potential berrowers 1o meet repayment obligations

The Company categorises its exposures based on the long-term rauings awarded to counterparties by Fitch Ratings Lid (“Fiich™) or Moody's
Corporation (* Moody’s™ Each exposure 1s assessed indevidually, both at incepuon and ;m ongoing monitoring  ln additton 10 formal external
ratings, the Banking Commitiee also utlises market intelligence information to assist 11s ongoing moniioring

Settlement balances

Secitlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash or transfer of a security 1s made in the expectation of a corresponding delivery of a
security or receipt of cash  The majonity of transactions are carried out on a delivery versus payment basis, which results 1n securities and cash
betng exchanged within a very close imeframe  Settlement balances outstde standard terms are momitored on a daily basis

The Company has exposures to market counterparties in the settlement of trades which arise primarily in relation to client trades and risk of
non-settlement 15 borne by clients

Loans and advances o banks and debt and other securities

The Company has exposures to a wide range of financial mstitutions through its treasury portfolio which includes bank deposits, certificates of
deposit, money market funds and government bonds  These exposures principally arise from the placement of surplus investment management
client cash, which 15 held under a banking relationship, and the Company and Group's own reserves The Company’s policy requires that all such '
exposures are only taken with counterparires that have been awarded a minimum long-term rating of “A” by Fitch or equivalent raung by :
Moody’s Counterparty himits are also 1 place to limit expasure to an individual counterparty or connected group of counterparties ‘
Counterparty exposures are monitored on a daily basis and reviewed by the Banking Committee on a monthly basis  The Banking Committee

may suspend dealing in a partrcular counterparty, or liquidate specific holdings, m the hight of adverse market information '

Loans and advances {o cusfomers
The Company provides loans to clients through 1ts Investment Management loan book

(a) Overdrafts
Qverdrafts on chients’ investment management accounts arise from time to time due to short-term uming differences between the purchase and sale
of assets on a clients’ behalf  Qverdrafts are actively momitored and reported to the Banking Commuttee on a monthly basis

(8) Investment management loan book

Loans and short-term overdrafts are provided as a service to Investment Management clients who are generally asset rich but have short- to
medium-term cash requirements  Such loans are normatty made on a fully secured basis against porifelos held 1n Rathbones® nominee name and
are advanced for a maximum of one year Lxtensions to the imitial loan puniod may be granted subject to credit criteria

The Banking Comnuttee reviews all loans on a monthly basis and approves all loan extensions  Where necessary, repayment plans are established
with clients before loans become overdue or uncovered

At 31 December 2011, the total lending exposure lumt for the Investment Management loan book was £60,000 000 (2010 £45,000,000) of which
£36,434,000 had been advanced (2010 £31,957,000) and a further £6,925,000 had been commatted (2010 £7,724,000)
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25 Financial risk management continued

Dernvatinves

From time to time, the Company makes use of derivative financial instrumen.s to manage interest rate isk - The Company maintams control
limits on net open dertvative positions (1 ¢ the difference between purchase and sale contracts), by both amount and term At any one time, the
amount subject 1o credit nisk 1s imited to the current fair value of instruments that are favourable to the Company (t e contracts with a positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives 1s only a small fraction of the notronal value of the contract

Impairment and provisioning policigs
Impairment provisions are recogmsed for financial repoting purposes only for losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date based on
objective evidence of impairment

All credit cxposures are reviewed individually, at least annually or more regularly when individual cireumstances require Impatrment allowances
on credit exposures are determined by an evaluation ot the incurred loss at balance sheet date on a Lase-by-casc basis  The assessment considers,
where applicable, the value of any coilateral held, any changes 1o the external credit rating and the anticipated receipts for each individual exposure

Maximum exposure to credit rish 2011 2010
£ 000 £ 000

Credit risk relating to on-balance sheet exposures

Settlement balances 10,253 11,999

Loans and advances to banks 52,183 31,282

Loans and advances to customers

- Overdratts 4,796 2923

- Investment Management loan book 36,434 31,956

- Amounts owed by group underiakings 4,593 4125

- Other debtors 2 5

Investment securities

- Unlisted debt securities and money market funds 906,983 788,085

Other financial assets 28,951 25,7117

Credit risk relating to off-balance sheet exposures

Loan comimitments 6,925 7,724

Financial guarantees 578 583
1,051,698 904,459

"I he above Lable represents the gross credit nisk exposure to the Company at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, without taking aceount of
any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying
amounts as reported i the balance sheet

9 3% of the total maximum exposure 1s dernved from leans and advances to banks and customers {2010 7 8%) and 86 2% represents investments
in debt securities (2010 87 1%%)

Settlement balances
Settlement balances are summarised as follows

2011 2010

£ 000 £000
Neither past due nor impaired 8,622 8,198
Past due but not impaired < 90 days 1,615 3,776
Past due but not impaired > 9¢ days 16 25
Empaired - -
Gross carrying value 10,253 11,999
Less allowance for imparment - -
Net carrying value 10,253 11,999
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25 Financial nsk management continued
(1) Credit risk continued

Loans and advances
Loans and advances are summarised as follows

2011 2011 2010 2010

. Loans Loans Loans Loans

and advances and advances and advances  and advances

to banks to customers 10 banks 10 ¢uStomers

£'000 £ £ 000 £ 0O
Neither past due nor impaired 52,183 45825 31,282 39,009
Gross careying value 52,183 45,825 31282 39,009
Net carrying value 52,183 43,825 31,282 39,009

No loans and advances have been renegotiated (2010 nil)

(a) Neither past due nor imparred

The credst quahty of loans and advances to customers that were neither past due nor impaired at 31 December 2011, which are all externally
unrated, 1s analysed below between those loans that remain within the standard lending criteria required at the inception of the loan, which are
desceribed on page 31, and those loans that no longer meet the imuat lending criteria An exposure 1s reported as past due when the contractual due

date for settlement has passed and the balance has not been repaid

Amounts

Total

Im estment owed ty loans and

Munugrincat group Other wdh ances

Overdrafn toan buak undertakings debiors 1o cuxtamers

At 31 December 2011 £'000 £1000 £'000 £ 000 £'000
Standard lending cniena 4,796 36,434 4,593 2 45,825
4,796 36,434 4,593 2 45,825

Amounts Tota)

Investment owed lo tozns and

Maragement group Cther advances

Overdrafts loan bech undertakings debtors 16 cusiomers

At 31 December 2010 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 1000 £ 000
Standard lending criteria 2,923 31,956 4,125 5 39,009
2923 31956 4,125 5 39,009

The credit quahity of loans and advances to banks that were neither past due nor impaired at 31 December 2011 15 analysed below by reference to

the long-term credit rating awarded by Fuch, or equivatent rating by Moody's as at the balance sheet date

2011 2010
£ 000 £'000
AA- L0 AA+ 11,892 31,282
Ato A+ 40,291 -
52,183 31,282
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25 Fmancial risk management continued

(1) Credst risk continued

{b) Past due but not immparred

A1 31 December 2011 there were ne loans and advances past due but not impaired (2010 £rul) Loans and advances that are past due are not
constdered impaired unless other information 15 also available 10 indicate the contrary

tc) impaired

There were no impaired credit exposures al 31 December 2011 (2010 £Nil)

Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis ¢t debt securities by rating agency designation, as at 31 December 2011, based on Fuch's or Moody's

long-term rating designation

2011 011 i1 2011 0l 2010 1010 2010
ux Muney Certilicaten Total UK Money Cerulicates Toual
Government market of deposdt Cravernment market of depesit
securiies funds securitics Ffunds

£7000 £7000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
AAA 86,983 63,000 - 149,983 - 37,000 - 37,000
AA- 10 AAT - - 258,000 258,600 - - 448,000 448 000
A- 10 A+ - - 499,000 499,000 - - 303,085 303,085
86,983 63,000 757,000 906,983 - 37,000 751,085 788,085
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25 Fmnancial risk management continued

(1) Concentration of credit nsk

The Company has counterparty concentration risk within its treasury assets 1n that exposure 15 10 2 number of similar eredit institutions  The
Banking Commutiee actively monitors counterparties and may reduce nisk by either suspending dealing or hquidating investments 1n the hght of
adverse market information, for example in antictpation of or 1n response to any formal Fitch or Moody's rating downgrade This may happen
relation to specific banks or banks within a particular country or sector

(a) Geographical sectors
The following table analyses the Company’s credit exposures, at their carrying amounts, by geographical regilon as at the balance sheet date [a
this analysis, exposures are categorised based on the country of domicile of the counterparty

Urnited Rest of
Kingdom Jersey the Waorld Total

At 31 December 2011 £'000 £'000 £000 £1000
Settlement balances 9,451 - 802 10,253
Loans and advaneces to banks 40,291 - 11,892 52,183
Loans and advances to customers
- Overdrafis 4,310 101 3Iss 4,796
- Investment Management loan book 34,758 263 1,413 36,434
- Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,531 1,979 83 4,593
- Other debtors 2 - - 2
Investmenlt securities
- Unlisted debt secunitics and money market funds 369,983 - 537,000 906,983
Other financial assets 25,857 37 3,057 28,951

487,183 1,380 554,632 1,044,195

Un:ted Rest of
Kingdom Jersey the World Total

At 31 December 2010 £ 000 £ 000 L 000 £ 00D
Settlement balances 10,933 - 1,066 11,999
Loans and advances to banks 17,2719 - 14 003 31,282
Loans and advances to customers
- Overdrafts 2,71 19 133 2,923
- Investment Management loan book 30,461 251 1,244 31,956
- Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,729 314 82 4,125
- Other debtors 5 - - 5
Investment securilies
- Unlisted debt securities and money market funds 305,000 - 483,085 TB8 085
Other financial assets 23,419 40 2317 25,776

393 597 624 501,930 896,151
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25 Financial risk management continued

(1) Concentration of credit risk continued

(b) Industry sectors
The Company’s credit exposures at the balance sheet date, analysed by the primary industrv sectors in which our counterpantses operate were

Private
Public Financial chients
sector instifutions angd ather Taotal
At 31 December 2011 L7000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
Settlement balances - 10,253 - 10,253
Loans and advances to banks - 52,183 - 52,183
Lodans and advances to customers
- Overdrafts - - 4,796 4,796
- [nvestment Management loan book - - 36,434 36,434
- Amounts owed by group undertakings - 4,593 - 4,593
- Other debtors - - 2 2
Investment securities
- Unlisted debt secunties and money market funds 86,983 820,000 - 906,983
Oeher financial assets - 4,181 24,770 28,951
36,983 891,210 66,002 1,044,195
Private
Public Financial chents
sector instituticns and other Total
At 31 Decemnber 2010 £ 000 1000 £ 000 £ 000
Settlement balances - 11,999 - 11,999
Loans and advances to banks - 31,282 - 31,282
{oans and advances to customers
- Overdrafis - - 2,923 2,923
- Investment Management loan boak . - 31,956 311,956
- Amounts owed by group undertakings - 4,125 - 4,125
- Other debtors - - 5 5
[nvestment secunitics
- Unlisted debt securities and money market funds - 788,085 - 788,085
Other financial asscts - 3,095 22,681 25,776

- 838 586 57,565 896 151

() Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk 1s the risk that the Company wili encounter difficulty in meeting ebligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset
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25 Fmancaal nsk management continued
(u) Liguidity risk continued

The primary objective of the Company”s treasury policy 15 to manage short to medium term liquichty requirements  The Company also has a
regulatory requirement to mamtain adequate hquidity to ensure that there 15 no significant nsk that its habilities cannot be met as they fall due
The controls and policies that ensure these requirements are met are now documented 1n an Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment (ILAA) in
response to additional regulatory requirements apphcable to the 2010 financiat year This assessment process was implemented 1n 2010 and was
reviewed by the Financial Services Authornity 1n 2011

Liquidity risk 1s primarily managed by holding cash and marketable instruments that are realisable at short notice  The Company operates a strict
set of criterta for counterpartres to ensure that investments are liquid and placed with ligh quality counterparties

The Company does not rely on external funding for its activities
Non-derivative cash flows

The table below presents the undiscounted cash flows reccivable and payable by the Company under non-derivative financial assets and habilities
by remaining contractual maturities at the balance shee: date

After 3 After 1
months year but
™ot more but not not mere
On than more than than
demand 3 morths 1 year S years Total
At 31 December 2011 £°000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 i 000
Cash flows arising from financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 3 - - - 3
Settlement balances - 10,253 - - 10,253
Loans and advances to banks 22,183 30,072 - - 52,255
l.oans and advances to customers 4,853 11,091 25,815 - 41,759
Investment debt securities and money market funds 63,041 484,865 355,456 10,602 913,964
Other financial assets - 24,744 - - 24,744
Cash flows anising from financial assets 50,080 561,025 381,271 10,602 1,042,978
Cash flows arising from financeal habilities
Deposits by banks 513 - - - 513
Settlernent balances - 19,296 - - 19,296
Due 1o customers 866,431 41,897 351 - 908,679
Other financial habilities 829 12,281 339 16,801 30,250
Cash flows arising frem financial habihities 867,773 73,474 690 16,801 958,738
Net hquidity gap (777,693) 487,551 380,581 (6,199) 84,240
After 3 After 1
months year but
Not more but not no: more
On than more than than
demand 3 months 1 year 5 years Total
A1 3] December 2010 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Cash flows arising from financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 3 - - - 3
Settlement balances - 11,999 - - 11,999
Loans and advances to banks 24,895 6,388 - - 31,283
Loans and advances to customers 1,35 9,878 22,433 - 39,446
Investment debt securities and money market funds 37,020 371,307 366,369 20,454 795,150
Other financial assets - 22,456 - - 22,456
Cash flows arising from financial assets 69,033 422,028 188,802 20,454 900,337
Cash flows arising from financial habihities
Deposits by banks 215 - - - 215
Settlement balances - 19,860 - - 19,860
Due to customers 768,213 43,353 525 - 812091
Other financial habilmes - 11,792 2,133 24,580 38,505
Cash flows arising from financial habilines 768,428 75,005 2,658 24,580 870,671
Net hguudity gap {699,375 347,023 386 144 (4.126) 29,666
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25 Financial risk management continued

() Liguidity risk continued

Included within the amounts due to customers due on demand disclosed above are balances that are repayable on demand or that do not have a
contractual matunity date, which historical experience shows are unbikely to be called in the short-term

Derivative cash flows (derivatives settled on a net basis)
The Company did not hold any derivative instrumenis at the 31 December 2011 (2010 Nil)

Off balance sheet items
Cash flows anising from the Company’s off balance sheet financial habilities (note 27) are summansed 1n the table below

The contractual value of the Company's commitments to extend credit to clients and maximum potential value of financial guarantees are analysed
by the duration of the commitment Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are reported by their contractual
payment dates Capual commitments are summarised by Lhe earhiest expected date of payment

Aflter 3 After 1
months Year our
Not more but not not more
than more than than After
3 months L year S years S years Totzl
At 31 December 2011 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Loan commitments 6,925 - - - 6,925
Financial guarantecs - - 578 - 578
Operating lease commitments 17 51 110 - 178
Capital commitments 2,223 - - - 2,223
[otal off balance sheet 1tems 9,165 51 688 - 9,904
After 3 Afler 1
months year but
Noi more but not not more
than more than than Afler
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 yenrs Total
At 31 December 2010 £ 000 £600 £ 000 £ 000 i 000
Loan commitments 7,724 - - - 7,724
Financial guarantees 5 - 578 - 583
Operating lease commutments 1,123 3,369 8,514 4,055 17,061
Capital commitmens 394 - - - 594
Total off balance sheet items 9,446 3,369 9,092 4,055 25,962
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25 Financial nsk management continued
{n) Liqudity risk continued

Total hiquidity requirement

After 3 Alter |
monihs year but
Mol more but nol nol more
On than more than than Afller
demand 3 months 1year 5years 5 years Total
At 31 December 2011 £ 000 £°000 £'000 £ 000 £°000 £ DOD
Cash flows ansing from financial habilities 867,773 73,474 690 16,801 - 958,738
Total off balance sheet ttems - 2,165 51 638 - 9,904
867,773 82,639 741 17,489 - 968,642
After 3 After 1
months year but
Not more but not ot more
On than more than than After
demand 3 months. 1 year 5 years § years Total
At 31 December 2010 £ 00C £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Cash flows ansing from financial habilities 768,428 75,005 2,658 24,580 - 870,671
Total off balance sheet tems - 9,446 3,369 9,092 4 (055 25,962
768,428 84,451 6,027 33,672 4,055 896,633

() Market nsk

Interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk s the nisk that the future cash flows of a financial mstrument will tluctuate because of changes in market intercst rates

Fair value interest rate nisk 1s the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates

The Company’s principal exposure to cash flow nterest rate risk arises from the nusmatch between the repricing of its financial assets and
hizbilities  In particular, customer accounts and loan balances are repriced very shorily after changes in base rates, whereas the yield on the
Company’s interest-bearing assets 1s correlated to the future expectation of base rates and vanes depending on the matunity profile of the
Company’s treasury portfoliec  The average maturity mismatch 15 controlled by the Banking Committee, which generally lengthens the mismatch
when the yield curve 1s expected to nse and shoriens it when the yield curve 1s expected o fall
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25 Financial risk management contihued

(1) Market risk conunued

Interest rate risk conunued

The table betow shows the repricing profile of the Company’s financtal assets and lrabtlites, stated at their carrying amounts categorised by the

eariter of contractual repricing or maturity dates

Not more After Alter After Nome
than 3 months 6 monthy 1 year but mterest
3 months but not more but not not more bearing
more than more than than
6 months 1 year Lyears Total
At 31 December 2011 £'000 £°000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £7000
Assets
Cash and batances at central banks - - - - 3 3
Settlement balances - - - - 10,253 10,253
Loans and advances to banks 52,183 - - - - 52,183
Loans and advances to customers 41,178 - - - 4,647 15,825
Investment securities
- debt secunities and money market funds 549,140 289,843 58,000 10,000 - 906,983
Other financial assets - - - - 28,951 28,951
Total financial assets 642,501 289,843 58,000 10,000 43,854 1,044,198
Laabihties
Deposits by banks 513 - - - - 513
Settlement balances - - - - 19,296 19,296
Due to customers 888,598 350 - - 47,921 936,869
Other financial ltabilites 15,000 - - - 10,809 25,809
Total financial habilities 904,111 350 - - 78,026 982,487
Interest rate repricing gap (261,610) 289,493 58,000 14,000 (34,172) 61,711
Not more After After After Non-
than 3 months 6 menths | year but Interest
3 months but not more but not not more beaning
more than more than than
6 months 1year 5 years Total
At 3| December 2010 £ 000 £ 000 L4000 £ 900 £ 000 £ 000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - 3 3
Settlement balances - . - - 11,999 11,999
Loans and advances to banks 31,282 - - - - 31,282
Loans and advances to customers 34,839 - - - 417N 39,010
Investment securities
- debt securities and money market funds 406,085 217,000 145,000 20,000 - 788,085
Other financial assets - - - - 25,776 25776
Total financial assets 472,206 217,000 145,000 20,000 41,949 §96,155
Laabihties
Deposits by banks 215 - - - - 215
Settlement balances - - - - 19,860 19,860
Due to customers 756,991 150 373 - 54,554 812,068
Other tinancial habihties 15,000 - - - 25,509 40,509
Total financial habilities 772,206 150 373 - 99923 872 652
Interest rate repricing gap (300,000) 216,850 144,627 20,000 (57,974) 23,503
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15 Financial nsk management continued
() Market risk continued
Interest rate risk continued

The Banking Commuittee has set an overall pre-tax mterest rate exposure limit of £5,000,000 (2010 £5,000,000) for the total profit or loss
resutting from an unexpected immediate and sustained 2% meovement 1n sterling interest rates for the Bank The potential total profit or loss 15
calculated on the basis of the average number of days to repricing of the interest bearmng tabilities compared with the peniod to repricing on a
correspending amount of interest bearing assets

Al 31 December 2011, the Company had £876 2 million (2010 £734 2 mullion) of sterling interest beaning liabibities averaging 2 days '
(2010 2 days) to reprnicing which were matched by sterling assets averaging 65 days (2010 89 days) to repricing, creating an exposure of 63 days

(2010 87) The total potential impact on profit afler tax and equity was £2,211,000 (2010 £2,542 000) at the balance sheet date for a 2%

decrease or tnerease 1n interest rates The Company held no forward rate agreements at 31 December 2011 (2010 none)

Foreign exchange risk
The Company monitors its currency exposures that artse 1n the ordinary course of business on a datly basis and sigmficant exposures are managed
through the use of spot contracts, from time to time, 50 as to reduce any currency exposure 1o a mimmal amount
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25 Financial risk management continued
{in) Market nsk continued

Foreign exchange risk continued

The Company does not have any matenal exposure to transactional foreign currency risk The table below summanises the Company's exposure
to foretgn currency translation nsk at 31 December 2011 Included 1n the table are the Company'’s financial assets and labthities, at carrying

amounts, categorised by currency

Sterling US Dollar Euro Other Tatal
At 31 December 2011 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £7000 £ 000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 3 - - - 3
Settlement balances 8,881 331 879 162 10,253
Loans and advances to banks 31,400 12,967 3,805 4,011 52,183
Loans and advances to customers 43,988 901 928 8 45,825
Investment secunties
- debt securities and money market funds 206,983 - - - 906,983
Other financial assels 28,951 - - - 28,951
Total financial assets 1,020,206 14,199 5,612 4,181 1,044,198
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 285 - - 228 513
Sertlement balances 18,203 807 - 286 19,296
Due to customers 911,844 15,266 5,494 4,265 936,869
Other financial Liabilities 25,783 26 - - 25,809
Total financial habilities 956,115 16,099 5,494 4,779 982,487
Net on balance sheet position 64,091 (1,900) 118 (598) 61,711
Loan commitments 6,925 - - - 6,925

Sterhing US Dollar Euro Other Total
At 31 December 2010 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 3 - - - 3
Settlement balances 10,504 1,048 68 379 11,999
Loans and advances to banks 8,475 16,450 3,633 2,724 31,282
Loans and advances to cuslomers 38,137 149 719 5 39,010
Investment securities
- debt sceurities and money market funds 788,085 - - - 788,085
Other financial assets 25,776 - - - 25,776
Total financial assets 870,980 17,647 4,420 3,108 896,155
Liabilittes
Deposits by banks - - - 215 215
Scttlement balances 18,983 621 68 188 19,860
Due to customers 788,793 16,439 4,224 2,612 812,068
Other financial habilities 40,356 117 12 24 40,509
Total financial iabihities 848,132 17,177 4,304 3,039 872,652
Net on balance sheet position 22,848 470 116 69 23,503
Loan commitments 5,260 - - - 5,260
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25 Financial risk management continued
(i) Market nsk continued

A 10% weakening of the US dollar or Euro against the pound sterling, occurrtng on 31 December 2010, would have reduced equity and profit
after tax by £ml or £9,000 respectively (2010 £34 000 and £8,000 respectively) A 10% strengthenuing of the US dollar or Euro would
have had an equal and opposite effect  This analysis assumes that all other vanables, in parucular other exchange rates, remain constant

Price nsk

Price nisk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 1in market prices (other than
those ansing from nterest rate risk or currency risk) The Company 1s exposed to price risk through 1ts holdings of equity investment securities
which are reported at thewr fair value {note 13}

Fair values
The fair values of the Company’s financial assets and habiliues are not matenally different from their carrving values, with the exception of
cquity investments in subsidiaries which are carried at historical cost (note 18)

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fawr value into a fair value hierarchy based on the valuation technique used to determine
the fair vatue

+ Level | quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities

» Level 2 mputs other than quoted prices included withun Level 1 that are observable for the asset or habihty, enher directly or indirectly

» Level 3 mnputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

1evel | Level 2 Level 3 Tolal
At 31 December 2011 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Assets
Available for sale securities
- money market funds - 63,000 - 63,000
Total financial assets - 63,000 - 63,000
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2010 £ 000 1000 £ 000 £000
Assets
Available for sale securities
- money market funds - 37,000 - 37,000
Total financiat assets - 37000 - 37,000

There have been no transfers between levels duning the above years  Money market funds are demand securiuies and changes to interest rates wall
not affect their fair value
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26 Capital management
Accounting capital 1s defined as the total of share capital, share premium, retained earnings and other reserves Total capital at 31 December 2011t
was £111,887.000 (2010 £97,773,000)

The Company’s objectives when managing capial are to

« safeguard the Company’s abthty to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders,

« maintain a strong capital base to be able to support the development of the business when required

« optimise the distnibution of capital across group companies reflecting the requirements of each business,

« strive to make capital freely transferable across the Group, to which the Company belongs, where possible, and

+ comply with regulatory requirements at ali imes

The Group, to which the Company belongs, 15 classified under the Capitat Requirements Directive (CRD) as a banking group and performs an
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) which 1s presented to the FSA on an annual basis  Regulatory capual resources for
ICAAP purposes are calculated 1n accordance with CRD rules  These require certain adjustiments ta and certain deductions from accounting
capital, the latter largely 1n respect of intangible assels  The ICAAP compares regulatory capuiial resources against regulatory capital requirements
derived using the CRD’s Pillar [ and Pillar I methedology The Group has adopted the standardised approach to us caleulating Pillar I credit nisk
comporent and the bastc indicator approach to calculating 1ts operational sk component  Capital management pohicy and practices are applied at
both Group and the Company level

At 31 December 2011 the Company’s regulatory capital resources, including retained eamings for 2011 were £65,097 000
(2010 £52,225,000)

In addition to a variety of stress tests performed as pant of the ICAAP process, and daily reporting 1n respect of treasury activity, capial levels
are monitored and forecasted on a monthly basis to ensure that dividends and investment requirements arc appropriately managed and appropriate
bufters are kept aganst adverse business conditions

Regulatory capital requirements have been met throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2011
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27 Contingent hlabihties and commitments

{a) Capital expenditure authenised and contracted for at 31 December 2011 but not provided 1n the accounts amousated to
£2,223.000 (2010 £594,000)

(b) The contractual amounts of the Company’s commitments to extend credit to 1ts chents are as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £ 000
Guarantees 578 583
Undrawn commitments to lend of 1 year or less 6,925 7,724
7,503 8,307

The fair value of the guarantees 1s £al (2010 £rul)

{c) The Company's parent leases various offices under non-cancellable operating lease agreements  The costs are re-charged to the Company
based on it's pro-rata share of occupancy, with each of the leases have varying terms and renewal nights  The future minumuem lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases payable by the Company were as follows

2011 2010

£ 000 £ 000
No later than 1 year 68 65
Later than | year and no later than 5 years 111 251
Later than 5 years - 441
178 757

(d) The Company has annual commitments under non-cancellable leases for other assets as follows

2011 2010

£ 000 1000
No later than | year 8 4
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 19 7
27 11

(e} Inaddition to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme levies accrued 1n the year (note 5) further levy charges are Likely to be incurred
1n future years although the ultmate cost remains uncertain

{f) 1nihe normal course ot business the Company has given letters of indemnity 1n respect of lost certified stock transfers and share ceruficates
Fhe contingent lizbility ansing from this can not be quantified, but it 1s pot believed that any material lability will arise under these
indemmities (2010 none)
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28 Related party transactions

(1) Parent and ultimate controlling party

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party of the Company 15 Rathbone Brothers Ple, a company registered in England, which 1s the
parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements Copues of the Group accounts may be obtained from
the Company Secretary, Rathbone Brothers Ple, 159 New Bond Street, London W1S 2UD

(u) I ransactions with key management personnel

The remuneration of the key management personnel ot the Company, who are defined as the Company’s directors and other members of semor
management who are responsible for planming, direciing and controlling the activities of the Company, 15 set out below Historically, the key
management personnel of the Company were considered to be hited to the Company's directors  The comparative balances 1n this note have
been restated to reflect the revised presentation

Key management personnel compensation
As explained in note 6 all statf, including key management personnel, are employed by the Company's ulimate parent undertaking Key
management personnel compensation borne by the Company's ultimate parent undertaking and charged to the Company comprised

2011 2010

Rewand

£ £

Short term employee benefits 3,225,544 3,029,738

Post-employment benefits 182,370 175,375

Other long-term benefits 600,157 914,709

Share-based payments 922,263 959,928
4,930,335 5,079,750 '

Key management personnel transacttons |
At 31 December 2011 key management and their close famuly members had gross outstanding deposits of £1,059,327 |
(2010 £1,408,776) and gross outstanding toans of £1,684,946 (2010 £1,229,001), all of which were made on normal business terms

A number of the Company's directors and their close family members make usc of the services provided by the Company Charges

for such services are made at various staff rates

All amounts outstanding with key management personnel are unsecured and will be settled in cash  No guarantecs have been given
or received No provisions have been made for doubtful debts n respect of the amounts owed by key management personne!

(i) Other related party transactions
During the year, the Company entered nto the following transactions with 1ts ultimate parent undertaking and fellow subsidiary undertakings

2011 2011 2010 2010
Restared Researed
Recenable Payable Reccivable Payable
£ 000 £'000 £000 £000

Fees and commutssions 1,547 4,540 1,237 |
Interest - 488 - 106
Charges for management services 5,945 11,7589 5,765 3,026
Dividends paid - 12,000 2,388 31,840
7,492 28,787 7,002 34,972
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Notes to the financial statements continued

28 Related party transactions continued
The Company's balances with fellow group companies at 31 December 2011 are set out in notes 12,20 and 21

All transactions and outstanding balances with fellow group companies are priced on an arm's length basis and are to be setiled 1n cash None of
the balances 1s secured and no provisions have been made for doubtful debts for any amounts due from fellow Group compantes

In 2010 the Company recerved a £15,000,000 subordinated loan from it's parent company, the terms of which are set out 11 note 21

A fellow subsidiary provides insurance cover to the Company, the fee for which 15 included 1n the table above

Staff costs and rent, which are incurred by Rathbone Brothers Plc, the Company's ulumate parent undertaking, are recharged to the Company on a
pro-rata basis based on head count and occupancy

The Company’s parcni operates sharc based payment incentive schemes and defined benefut pension schemes for the benetit ot 1ts employees

The associated charges to profit that relate to employees that provide services to the Company are recharged to the Company by 1ts parent
Recharges relating to pension costs are disclosed within staff costs Recharges relating to share based payments are included within adminustrative
expenses

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plans are recharged to the Company by the parent company Paymenits to defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

29 Statement of cash flows

For the purposes of the statement ot cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compnise the following balances with less than three months until
maturity from the date of acquisitton

2011 2010

£ 000 000
Cash (note 10) 3 3
Eoans and advances 1o banks (note 11) 52,183 31,282
Avanable for sale investment securities (note 13) 63,000 37,000
115,186 68,285

Available for sale investment securittes are amounts invested 1n money market funds which are realisable on demand

30 Events after the balance sheet date
There have been no matertal events occurring between the balance sheet date and the date of signing thus report

31 Chent money

At 31 December 2011 amounts held by the Company on behalf of chents in accordance with the Chent Money Rules ot the Financial Services
Authonty amounted to £2,183,000 (2010 £8,040,000) The Company has no beneficial interest 1n these assets or deposits and eccorcdingly
they are not included 1n the Company’s balance sheet
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